THE lNSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS OF INDI A
(Set up by an Act of Parliament)

PR-373/17/DD/08/2018/BOD/547/2020

ORDER UNDER SECTION 21A(3) OF THE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ACT, 1949 READ WITH RULE

15(1) OF THE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (PROCEDURE OF INVESTIGATIONS OF PROFESSIONAL
AND OTHER MISCONDUCT AND CONDUCT OF CASES) RULES, 2007.

In the matter of:-

Shri Amit M. Panchal, Ahmedabad ..Complainant

-Vs.-

CA. Tehmul B. Sethna (M.N0.035476),
M/s.Apaji Amin & Co., LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad ...Respondent

[PR-373/17/DD/08/2018/BOD/547/2020]

MEMBERS PRESENT: (Through video conferencing)

CA. Prasanna Kumar D., Presiding Officer
Mrs. Rani Nair, (IRS, Retd.), Government Nominee
CA. Satish Kumar Gupta, Member

Date of Final Hearing: 5" October, 2021

1. The Board of Discipline vide Report dated 11" February, 2021 held that CA. Tehmul! B.
Sethna (M.No.035476) is Guilty of Other Misconduct falling within the meaning of Item (2) of Part IV
of the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 read with section 22 of the said Act.

2. An action under Section 21A (3) of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 was contemplated
against CA. Tehmul B. Sethna and communication dated 16™ September, 2021 was addressed to
him thereby granting him an opportunity of being heard in person and/or to make written
representation before the Board on 5™ October, 2021. Thereafter, he submitted his written

representation dated 28th September, 2021 on the Findings of the Board.

3. CA. Tehmul B. Sethna appeared before the Board on 5™ October, 2021 through video

conferencing and made his oral representation thereat.
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4. CA. Tehmul B. Sethna in his written representation dated 28™ September, 2021, inte r-alia

submitted that the Order of the Board of Discipline is not fair and proper justice was not delivered

by the Board on the following grounds:-

a. Regarding the quorum of the Board of Discipline, the Respondent stated that one of the

members of the Board, Ms. Rani Singh Nair, Retd-CBDT Chairperson is an interested party.

b. The Respondent further challenged the jurisdiction of the Board of Discipline and the
Director (Discipline) with respect to formation of Opinion by stating that the formation of
Opinion by the Council about bringing disrepute is a pre-requisite before initiating action

under Clause (2) of Part IV of First Schedule.

c. In response to Para 9 of the Report, the Respondent submitted that the Board mentioned
that they had come to the conclusion based on facts and documents, however, the Board
seems to have only considered the documents and facts as stated by the Complainant. The
Findings by the Board is absolutely false. When the FSL report by the Government of Guijarat
clearly contradicts the tampered affidavit that Respondent had not signed any of the
documents, the Board cannot override that power and find the Respondent guilty of illegally
opening an account and forging signatures of trustees. Also, it does not make common sense
on how they found that the Respondent has withdrawn amount for personal gains, when all
the Balance Sheets of the Trust have been signed by the Trustees and are uncontested. The
Income Tax Authorities have not rejected the books of the Trust as per Assessment Orders of
AY 2011-12 to AY 2017-18, rather the Respondent was exonerated of any wrong doing. The

Respondent further requested the Board of Discipline to reconsider its decision.

d. Inresponse to Para 10 of the Report, the Respondent submitted that the Board comes to an
* imaginary conclusion to show that whatever the Complainant has alleged is all true by the
various Assessment Orders, Charge Sheet filed and Court Orders. The same is not true, since
the Board has not taken into consideration the Assessment Orders of the Trust and the
findings of the DCIT, the Assessing Officer which have been passed after the Complainant
represented the Trust in the Assessment Proceedings. In all 7 Assessment Orders of the
Trust, the Assessing Officer has disregarded the Affidavit of the Respondent, has accused the

Trustees of wrong doings and has mentioned that the Trustees are lying and are trying to

blame the Respondent.
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e. The complaint filed by the Complainant in Point no. 5 of Form | is for FIR filed by the wife of
the Complainant Mrs. Shivangi Panchal who is the trustee of Trust. The Complainant is in no
way connected with the Trust, neither he is a trustee nor an authorized agent to produce the
documents relating to the Trust or documents relating to other parties referred to. Hence,
no reliance can be placed on such documents produced without proper authorisation.
Further, the Complainant has sent certain documents to the Board after the final hearing on

8th February, 2021 and the Respondent had not been given an opportunity to verify the

authenticity of such documents.

f.  The Complaint is time barred as the account of the Complainant was opened in 2007 as per
"Bank Account Opening Form and as per Rule 12 of Chartered Accountants (Procedure of
Investigations of Professional and Other Misconduct and Conduct Of Cases) Rules, 2007, it is

more than 7 years hence the complaint filed by the Complainant should be dismissed.

g. An FIR filed against the Respondent does not hold enough ground to hold him guilty unless
the guilt is proved by evidence. The Hon’ble Supreme Court has clarified in one of its
judgments that when the proceedings are going simultaneously for different connotations,
but based on the same FIR, documents and evidences under such circumstances matter be
kept pending till the Respondent is held Guilty by the relevant Court and it is premature to
hold him guilty — if held guilty by those Courts under said Indian Penal Code, or(CiviI Court,

then at that time the case can get covered in Clause (1) of Part IV of the First Schedule if the

offense is punishable with imprisonment.

h. In his 37 years career he has never faced disciplinary action and unfortunately due to greed

of his ungrateful client whom he had not charged a single rupee for 25 years, he had faced

the present wrong complaint.

4, The Board has carefully gone through the facts of the case and also the oral and written

representation of CA. Tehmul B. Sethna. Considering the same, the Board was of the following view:

(i} As regards the plea of the Respondent that the Quorum of the Board of Discipline was not
proper as Ms. Rani Singh Nair, Retd-CBDT Chairperson, the Government Nominee was
an interested party, the Board observed as under:-

a. The Prima Facie Opinion dated 22" November, 2019 formed by the Director(Discipline) in

@/’ the case was considered by the Board at its meeting held on 3™ and 4™ March, 2020 wherein 01»
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all the three members of the Board were present and the Board duly concurred with the
reasons given against the charge(s) and agreed with the Prima Facie Opinion of the Director
(Discipline}. Accordingly, the case was referred for enquiry.

Thereafter, the hearings in the case were listed before the Board on 19" January, 2021, 29t
January, 2021 and 8" February, 2021.However, the hearing fixed for 19" January 2021 had
been adjourned at the request of the Respondent. The Respondent was physically present
before the Board both on 29" January, 2021 and 8" February, 2021.

The Respondent duly filed his detailed written submissions/documents before the Board
vide communication dated 22/07/2020, 19/08/2020, 5" February 2021,9" February 2021
and 10™ February 2021 and presented his oral defense during the proceedings before the
Board.

The Respondent raised the plea of one of the members of the Board being an interested
party only on 28/09/2021 through his written representation i.e. only after receipt of the
Findings of the Board dated 11/02/2021 holding him Guilty.

The documents brought on record by the Respondent to prove the non-independence of
one of the Member of the Board was his filing of Form 1 (declaration under Section 183 of
the Finance Act, 2016 in respect of Income Declaration Scheme, 2016) alleged to be received
by the IT Department, Ahmedabad on 30/09/2016, Form 2 (Acknowledgment of Declaration
under Section 183 of the Finance Act, 2016) dated 14/10/2016 issued by Principal
Commissioner of Income Tax, Ahmedabad and Order dated 28/11/2016 passed by Principal

Commissioner of Income Tax, Ahmedabad in the matter of Shri Maheshkumar Champaklal

Shah, one of his clients.

~ The Board after perusing the said documents viewed that the said allegation is on the face of

it is not maintainable as the subject matter of the extant proceedings emanates from the
takeover of premises of Environment Research and Development Centre, Ahmedabad
(Trust) allotted by the Government on lease for educational purpose and the Respondent
used the personal information of the Complainant which was in his possession for wrongful
benefits. However, the Respondent represented his client Mr. Mahesh Kumar Champaklal
Shah before the Income Tax Department where none of the Orders/ documents issued by
the Income Tax Department in 2016{as brought on record by the Respondent) even
mentions the name of the Government Nominee of the Board.

The Board also noted that the instant complaint regarding Other Misconduct of the

Respondent had been filed by one of the clients of the Respondent who also happened to be
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the husband of one of the family friends of the Respondent. It was not comprehensible 3¢ to
how there is conflict of interest in the instant case with respect to IDS matter represented by
the Respondent before the Income Tax Department. IDS was a scheme introduced by the
Government of India when the Honorable Government Nominee of the Board was the
Chairman, CBDT. The Respondent did not bring on record any material to prove any past or
present relationship or interest in subject matter of the extant proceedings which is likely to
give rise to justifiable doubts as to her independence or impartiality. The Board was of the
view that it seems to be a tactics adopted by the Respondent to divert the attention of the
Board to unwarranted issues.

h. The Board also took a serious view of the conduct of the Respondent in this respect as
despite being physically present before the Board during hearing, he neither verbally nor in
written form raised such objection when the Disciplinary proceedings were going on and

raised the said objection at the fag end of the extant Disciplinary proceedings wherein he

had already been held Guilty.

(i) As regard the plea of the Respondent regarding non- fulfilment of the requirement
stipulated in Clause (2) of Part IV of the First Schedule, the Board referred to Para 15 of
the Order dated 13th May, 2017 passed by the Hon’ble Appellate Authority in the
matter of Gyan Prakash Agarwal (Appeal No. 08/ICAI/2014), Rajiv Maheshwari (Appeal
No. 05/ICAI/2014)} and Sameer Kumar Singh Vs. ICAI (Appeal No. 07/ICAl/2014) wherein

it is held as under:

“15. Based on the above and by taking note of the written submissions made on behalf of
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Institute of Cost Accountants of India and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India containing the detailed Page 9 of 14 analysis
of the issue in question, we are of the considered view that the proper and correct
interpretation which can be given to Clause (2) of Part-IV of the First Schedule to the
respective Acts, in the light of the principles laid down and having regard to the case laws of
various courts and further considering the basic objects, reasons and purpose of the
amendment brought in the statutes as quoted above is that, “Prima facie Opinion (PFO)’
formed by the Director (Discipline) in all such complaints / information cases serves the
purpose for proceeding further for taking disciplinary action against the errant members as
in terms of the amended mechanism for conduct of cases, it is the Director (Discipline) who
has to form the first Prima Facie Opinion Jor the disciplinary proceedings to be initiated.
Therefore, the opinion of Council as is mentioned in the clause (2) of Part-IV of the First
Schedule to the Act has to be given a purposive meaning and has to be read in consonance
with the letter and scheme of the enactment”,
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Hence, the issue had already been decided by the Hon’ble Appeliate Authority, and therefore, there

is no merit in the argument of the Respondent in this regard.

(i) As regard the plea of the Respondent regarding the authority of Complainant to file
extant complaint, the Board was of the view that the complaint had been registered
against the Respondent after due scrutiny in accordance with the Chartered Accountants
(Procedure of Investigations of Professional and Other Misconduct and Conduct Of
Cases) Rules, 2007.Raising of such preliminary issues by the Respondent when the
Disciplinary proceedings have already been concluded against him holding him Guilty
and when the case is for award of punishment before the Board seems to have been
raised to divert the attention of the Board from the core issue.

(iv) As regard the plea of the Respondent that the matter is time barred as per the
provisions of Rule 12, the Board viewed that Rule 12 is attracted in a situation /
circumstance where on account of time lag, the Respondent faces any difficulty in
securing proper evidence for his/her defence and it does not ipso facto render the
complaint/ information as not maintainable. However, in the instant case, the
Respondent did not express any difficulty being faced by him in leading the evidence in
his defence despite being physically present before the Board during hearing either
verbally or in written form when the Disciplinary proceedings were going on and raised
the said objection at the fag end of the extant Disciplinary proceedings wherein he had
already been held Guilty. Accordingly, the Board was of the view that the plea of the
Respondent is not maintainable.

(v) As regards the plea of the Respondent to keep the proceedings pending referring to SC
judgements, the Board opined that proceedings before the Board of Discipline are quasi-
judicial in nature where the Misconduct can be proved by preponderance of
probabilities having regard to the conduct of the Respondent. While coming to the said
view the Board took into consideration the decision of the Hon’ble Supreme Court in the
matter of “Ajit Kumar Nag —vs- General Manager (PJ) Indian Oil Corporation Limited-AIR
2005 SC 4217 wherein the Hon’ble Apex Court held as under:-

“The degree of proof which is necessary to order a Conviction is different from the degree

of proof necessary to record the commission of delinquency. The rules relating to

A
@/ appreciation of evidence in the two proceedings is also not similar. In criminal law,
burden of proof is on the prosecu‘tion and unless the prosecution is able to prove the guilt
w
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of the accused beyond reasonable doubt he cannot be convicted by a Court of law. p g
departmental enquiry penalty can be imposed on the delinquent officer on a finding

recorded on the basis of preponderance of probability.”

‘ Similarly in the matter of Capt. M Paul Anthony —vs- Bharat Gold Mines Limited -
AIR....1999 SC 1416 the Hon’ble Supreme Court held as under:-

“In departmental proceedings, factors prevailing in the mind of the disciplinary authority
may be many, such as enforcement of discipline of to investigate level of integrity of
delinquent or other staff. The standard of proof required in those proceedings is also
different from that required in a criminal case. While in departmental proceedings, the
standard of proof is one of preponderance of probabilities, in a criminal case, the charge

has to be proved by the prosecution beyond reasonable doubt.”

Further, it is not an inflexible rule of Law that disciplinary proceedings must be stayed in each
and every case where a trial is pending before the Criminal Court on the very same
facts/charges. The stay Orders have been passed in specific cases keeping in view the facts of the
case and cannot be applied in general to stay/keep in abeyance all the disciplinary proceedings
before it.

(vi) As regards the plea of the Respondent that he was not been given an opportunity to
verify the authenticity of documents sent by the Complainant to the Board after the final
hearing on 8th February, 2021, the Board held that on 8" February 2021, the
proceedings had been concluded with the direction to provide the following with a copy
of the same to the other party for their cémments thereon, if any:

---- To the Respondent:
(a) Gist of the case mentioning the relevant page numbers of the documents of his
submission Y7193 e} baitihed\ &ty s wifityy
(b) Copy of his Income Tax Assessmeni;Order for AY. 2011 12 to A.Y. 2017-18

(c) Report of the Special Audltor in Form EB issued for, zA.Y-éOll 12to AY. 2017-18.

e L AL E 11.[.1 SRSt ;—fg

nml?uerllan' .Dan B !r\mullanlmr
SE007 ¢ - iz ! i} l}rf Fer aneufivines
SEOOT ! -Heite U GbAEAE Aegud sxwdelV | na ::—*{;:E’—l
----- To the Complainant:
§ (a) Gist of the case mentioning the relevant page numbers of the documents of his
submission. —_
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The Complainant vide email dated 9™ February 2021 submitted his response which
was basically a gist of the case, a copy of which was also marked to the Respondent

by him. Thus, the Board did not find any merit in the plea raised by the Respondent.

5. Thus, as per the Findings of the Board as contained in its report, the Respondent abused his
professional relationship for personal gains from the initial period of creation of The Environment
Research & Development Centre, Ahmedabad (Trust) and for wrongful benefits, the Respondent
created various documents, opened bank accounts, forged signature of trustees, misused the
documents entrusted with him during his professional engagement with the Trust and illegally
withdrew the amount from the bank account of the Trust through his peon Mr. Vijay Solanki, thus,
bringing disrepute to the profession. The misconduct of the Respondent is duly established in the
charges alleged by the Complainant duly substantiated by the various Assessment Orders, Charge
Sheet filed against him and Court Orders available on record. Thus, it has already been held that CA.
Tehmul B. Sethna is Guilty of Other Misconduct falling within the meaning of ftem (2) of Part IV of
the First Schedule to the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 read with section 22 of the said Act.

6. Upon consideration of the facts of the case, the consequent misconduct of CA. Tehmul B.
Sethna (M.N0.035476) and keeping in view his oral and written representation before it, the Board
decided to remove the name of CA. Tehmul B. Sethna (M.No0.035476) from the Register of
Members for a period of 01 (one) month and also imposed a fine of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rs. One lakh

only) upon him payable within a period of 60 days from the date of receipt of the Order.

Sd/-
CA. PRASANNA KUMAR D.

(PRESIDING OFFICER)
Date: 1% February, 2022

wfor mm Certified true copy

aR. g, siarwa /R, S, Srivastava
woe witw /Assistant Secrelary
fardwmeru / Disciplinary Directorate

Sl
Tha Institute of ghnrlarod Accountants of India

we, T TR, ueey, faeefi-110032
ICAl Bhawan, Vishwas Nagar, Shahdra, Delhl-110032

Page 8 of 8



BOD/547/2020

BOARD OF DISCIPLINE
Constituted under Section 21A of the Chartered Accountants Act 1949

Findings under Rule 14 9) of the Chartered Accountants Procedure of Investi ations
Of Professional and Other Misconduct and Conduct of Cases) Rules, 2007

File No. : PR/373/17-DD/08/1 8-BOD/547/2020

CORAM:

CA. Prasanna Kumar D., Presiding Officer (in person)
Smt. Rani Nair (IRS, retd.), Government Nominee (Through video conferencing)

In the matter of:

Shri Amit M Panchal

56, Chaitanyanagar

Navijivan,

Near Sardar Patel Stadium Petrol Pumps,

AHMEDABAD 380014 .....Complainant

Versus

CA. Tehmul B. Sethna (M.No. 035476)

M/s. Apaji Amin & Co. LLP,

Chartered Accountants

304, Aakansha Building,

Opp. Vadilal House,

Navrangpura,

AHMEDABAD 380009 .....Respondent

DATE OF FINAL HEARING g 8" February, 2021
PLACE OF FINAL HEARING : New Delhi
PARTIES PRESENT:

Complainant : Shri Amit M Panchal
(through video conferencing)

Respondent : CA. Tehmul B. Sethna
(physically at ICAI office, Indraprastha Marg, New Delhi)
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FINDINGS:

Rrief facts of the case:

1. The Respondent was known to Shri Pannalal Modi (father of the Complainant's wife).
shri Pannalal Modi, Mrs. Shivangi Panchal (Complainant’s wife), and Ms. Parul Modi (sister
of Complainant’s wife) were trustees of Environment Research and Development Centre,
Ahmedabad (hereinafter referred to as the “Trust’). After death of Shri Pannalal Modion
31/03/2006, the Respondent approached other two trustees i.e. Complainant’'s wife and her
sister and represented to them that since they were ladies they would not be in a position to
run the Trust and look after the financial actnwpes of the Trust. Accordingly, the Trust work
was assigned to the Respondent and Memorai'ldum of Understanding (MoU) was executed
between the Respondent and the Complainant’'s wife on 26/10/2013 to become Trustee and
to takeover premises of Trust allotted by the Government on lease for educational purpose.

Charges alleged:

2. The Respondent used the personal information of the Complainant which was in his
possession without Complainant’s knowledge and consent for opening of Individual Savings

Bank a/c no. 0179053000010765 with Sputh Indian Bank at Ashram Road, Ahmedabad
Branch.

2.1 The Respondent forged the signatures of the Complainant on the copy of PAN Card and
telephone bill dated 06/08/2007 which were in his possession being a Chartered Accountant

for the Complainant and his family members Eor last many years and submitted the same for
the opening of the said bank account on 10/09/2007.

2.2 The Respondent also became introducer of said Bank account and made financial
transactions in said bank account fraudulently’opened by him in the name of Complainant on
10/09/2007 and also forged the signatures of Complainant on the cheques of Individual
Savings Bank account and ever since 10/09/2007 until 05/12/2017 with withdrawals in said

bank account amounting to Rs. 1,00,22,160/- after deposits amounting to Rs. 1,00,30,269/-
until 22.01.2011.

The said acts came to the knowledge of the Complainant through Mr. Desu Vijayakumar,
Manager, South Indian Bank, and accordingly the Respondent has committed the offence of
forgery and criminal breach of trust, by deceiving and cheating the Complainant.
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23 The Respondent opened the bank account of the trust with South Indian Bank with gyt

the knowledge of the trustees and withdrew huge amount of money from the said bgnk
account of the Trust.

Brief of proceedings:

3. During the hearing held on 29" January, 2021, the Respondent was physically present
before the Board and the Complainant was present through video conferencing and both of
them made their detailed oral submissions. On consideration of the documents and

Submissions, on record, the Board directed the Respondent to submit the following
documents with a copy marked to the Complainant:

a. Copy of the Income Tax return of Mr. Amit Panchal for AY 2011-12 and 2012-13
together with its acknowledgement.

b. Audited Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Tax Audit Report of Mr. Amit
Panchal for AY 2011-12 and 2012-13.

c. Copy of the Income Tax return of M/s Environment Research and Development
Centre for AY 2011-12 and 2012-13 together with its acknowledgement.

d. Copy of his Income Tax return along with the Income Tax Assessment Order for AY
2011-12 and 2012-13.

In compliance of the above directions, the Respondent vide email dated 5 February, 2021
submitted his response.

4. Thereafter, at the final hearing held on 8" February, 2021 wherein the Respondent
was physically present before the Board and the Complainant was present through video
conferencing and after considering the submissions of both the parties, the Board decided to
conclude the proceedings in the case with the direction to provide the following with a copy
of the same to the other party for their comments thereon, if any:

To the Respondent:

a. Gist of the case mentioning the relevant page numbers of the documents of his
submission

b. Copy of his Income Tax Assessment Order for A.Y. 2011-12to A.Y. 2017-18

Report of the Special Auditor in Form 6B issued for A.Y. 2011-12 to A.Y. 2017-18.
To the Complainant:

a. Gist of the case mentioning the relevant page numbers of the documents of his
submission.
~
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Accordingly, the decision on the conduct of the Respondent was kept reserved by the Bogard.
In compliance of above directions, the Respondent vide email dated 09/02/2021 gng

10/02/2021 submitted his response. The Complainant vide email dated 09/02/2021 glso
submitted his response.

Thereafter, the Board at its meeting held on 11th February 2021, on the basis of the
documents and submissions on record, arrived at its findings.

Brief Submissions of the Respondent: T

5. The Respondent in his submissions inter-alidi submitted as under:-

a. Regarding the affidavit dated 24/12/2016 i"signed by the Respondent, the Respondent
submitted that Mrs. Shivangi Panchal and Ms. Parul Modi requested the Respondent to
make a affidavit so that Respondent can face the Income Tax Department and take
everything on himself. The Respondent further submitted that as a family member, he
signed the affidavit prepared by the Complainant and shown to him at the last moment

before signing and suddenly after making the affidavit, they started demanding money
from the Respondent.

b. The Respondent referred to FSL Report given by Directorate of Forensic Science to the
Police Department and stated that what was written in the affidavit was not totally true
and his stand was vindicated as per said FSL Report. Further, the FSL Report
establishes that Respondent has not signed any cheques either of Complainant or of
Trust.

c. Regarding the MoU dated 26/10/2013 executed between the Respondent and Mrs.
Shivangi Panchal, the Respondent referred to FSL Report of Mrs. Shivangi Amit Panchal
(wife of Complainant) and submitted that the said MoU was signed by Mrs. Shivangi
Panchal and she received Rs. 5 Lakhs on signing MoU. The said MoU was lying at the
office of the Respondent and during search by the Income Tax Department, the copy of
same was seized and was printed in Assessment Order of Trust which shows that the
same was lying in the office and was not fabricated later. The Respondent further
submitted that FSL report exonerated him of any wrong doing.

d. The Respondent further referred to the Assessment Orders of Trust for AY 2011-12 to
AY 2017-18 wherein the Complainant represented the Trust, attended the hearing and
explained the issues.The Dy. Commissioner of Income Tax Circle 1(1) after scrutiny

came to the conclusion that the trustees were totally aware of all the transactions in the
Trust and were trying to shift onus on the Respondent.

e
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e. The Respondent filed the Civil Defamation Suit against the Complainant, Trust, Mys
Shivangi Panchal and Ms. Parul Modi praying to refrain the Complainant and others jn
not using the affidavit made by him and to recover Rs. 10 crores from them.

f. Regarding Respondent’s role in opening of the bank account, the Respondent submitted
that in the year 2007, Mrs. Shivangi Panchal (wife of the Complainant) and Mr. Amit
Panchal (Complainant) wanted to visit USA, and they wanted to have some balance to
show in his account. They approached him to help her out and he helped them and dye
to this, the bank accounts were opened. The Respondent added that the Complainant
compared with his account but not compared to Ms. Shivangi account which the
Respondent had opened it and entry of Rs. 11 lakhs was coming from Ms. Shivangi
Panchal account to his account. The Respondent stated that this transaction was done
on Ms. Panchal's request and she promised to pay him back on the sale of some land.
The Respondent added that he gave Rs. 5 lakh further to Ms. Panchal with MOU signed
by her in this regard.

d. The Respondent also took the plea that Special Auditor in his report has given clean chit

to the Respondent as far as findings of Assessing Officer is concerned in various Orders
passed by the Assessing Officer.

Brief Submissions of the Complainant:

6. The Complainant in his submissions,inter-alia submitted as under:-

a. The Respondent is a habitual offender and has been involved in a series of offences
of forgery, committing fraud, cheating etc. and has not even spared his wife,
Kamalrukh Sethna, who has also filed a Criminal Complaint against him on
26.12.2016, with Navrangpura Police Station, Ahmedabad, CR. No. 132/2016 under
Sections 406, 420, 465, 467, 468 and 471 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860, (I.P.C).

b. The Income Tax Department had on 29.11.2016, raided Respondent’s residential
and business premise for conducting search operation u/s 132 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The action u/s 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, on a practicing Chartered
Accountant itself puts the Chartered Accountant, under the cloud of suspicion.

c. During the course of search proceedings, some incriminating documents related to
the Trust were also found and seized from the office premises of the Respondent by
the Officers of the Income Tax Department. The said documents include the forged
donation receipts, bank passbooks and forged signed blank cheques etc. All such
aspects are mentioned in the Reassessment Orders passed by the Income Tax

Department in the case of the Trust and submitted by the Respondent along with his
reply dated 22/07/2020.

<
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d. This action of the Income Tax Department exposed the Respondent and aj| his

h.

malpractices which the Respondent has been carrying out since years together. The
clients of the Respondent, including the Complainant and family members of
Complainant, keeping full trust in Respondent for such a long period of time, were
under a bonafide belief that the Respondent being a professional is doing a good
service for all.

It was for the first time on 19/07/2017 and 15/12/2017, that the Trustees were made
aware of Assessment Proceedings, as since the Respondent was only handling all
the matters of the Trust and had even changed the communication address from the
Original Address of the Trust to his ;office Address, there was no occasion and
opportunity for the Trustees to be aware of the dealings the Respondent had with the
Trust and/or with regard to the Income Tax Department or any other authority calling
for information by issuing Notice of the dealings of the Trust.

The Trust was created by father-in-law of the Complainant 20 years ago and since its
inception till date, this Trust has remained dormant. There were no activities being
carried out by the Trust over this period of time. The original address of the Trust was
the residence of Complainant’s father-in-law, being A/5 Swastik Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009. During the course of time, the Respondent got
the address of the Trust changed from A/5, Swastik Society, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad 380009, which was the residential a_ddress of Complainant’s father-in-
law and the founder of the said Trust, to the address of his office premises without
any authority given to him and also without knowledge of the remaining two Trustees,
after the death of Complainant’s father-in-law.

It was only after getting notices at residential address by the Complainant, from the
ITO (Exemption), Ward-1, dated 19.0%20 17 and 15.12.2017, that Complainant and
his family members came to know that due to search action on the Respondent,
assessment of the Trust for A.Y. 2010-11, was reopened. The Respondent had never
ever informed Complainant and the Trustees of the consequences of these
proceedings and kept on appearing before the Income Tax Authority on behalf of the
Trust without being ever authorized to do so by the surviving Trustees. It was only
after perusing the notice of the ITO (Exemption), Ward-1, dated 15.12.2017 the
Complainant came to know that the Respondent was still appearing before the
Income Tax Authorities on behalf of the Trust without any authority, consent and
knowledge and even after filing affidavit dated 24.12.20186.

As regards the alleged report of the Private Hand Writing Agency submitted by the
Respondent, the Complainant denied the same and stated that the said report has no
credence. Further, the Investigating Officer has not accepted and has not relied upon

Page 6 of 14



BOD/54-7/2020

such purported Private Hand Writing Agency report made by a Private Agency, gng
even the Charge Sheet has been filed before the Hon'ble Competent Court for
offences of forgery, misappropriation, cheating etc.

The wife of the Complainant being dissatisfied by the earlier investigation carried qut
by in connection with FIR I-Cr. No. 187/2017, filed Special Criminal Application No.
3521 of 2019 before Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat seeking reliefs as mentioned in
the Order dated 12/04/2019, passed by the Honourable High Court of Gujarat. The
Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat after hearing the Learned Public Prosecutor appearing
for the State of Gujarat was pleased to allow the Petition and directed further
investigation to be carried out by Assistant Commissioner of Police which was to be
supervised by the Deputy Commissioner of Police of the concerned Police Station
and also directed that further investigation be completed within a time frame fixed by
the Hon’ble Court.

Regarding the alleged Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) referred by the
Respondent, the Complainant submitted that the Trustees were shocked to have
come to know of its existence. The signature of the Trustee was also forged on the
said MoU by the Respondent. The two witnesses who have signed the said MoU are
only one, Ms. Aarti R. Panchal who was working as an employee of the Respondent.
The two representations made to the Police Commissioner by the Respondent, one
on 12.12.2017 and second on 13.1 2.2017, there is no reference to the said MoU at
all. There is one more aspect which requires to be pointed out with regard to the
alleged MOU, fraudulently created by the Respondent on which the Respondent has
alleged that One Trustee, Ms. Shivangi Panchal has signed the said MOU. The
Complainant drew attention to the following para 14 of the Affidavit dated 24.12.2016,
affirmed by the Respondent, to substantiate the point that the MOU has been forged
by the Respondent :

‘I say that as regards the parcel of land given to the Trust on lease by the Deputy
Collector by Order dated 10.06. 2002, is concerned, the Trustees of the Trust have in
no manner ever dealt with the said land contrary to the conditions for the grant of the
said land and have in no manner entered into any negotiation with any person, firm
or company, so as to create any encumbrance in any manner with regard to the land
in question.”

Whereas, the Respondent referred to MoU dated 26/10/2013 and has claimed that
Ms. Shivangi Panchal has signed the said MoU dated 26/10/2013 and the same

establishes the false allegation of the Respondent and the MoU is forged and was
never in existence. ) @/
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k. As regards filing of Civil Defamation Suit against the Complainant by the Respondent
is concerned, the said Civil Suit is nothing but a frivolous litigation and the sSuit is
without any substance whatsoever. The Complainant also submitted copy of replies
filed by the Trustees of the Trust and by him in Civil Suit No. 1423 of 2019 to Support
his claim.

I As regards the copies of Assessment Orders, passed in the case of the Trust by the
ACIT Central Circle-l (I), Ahmedabad, for the AY. 2011-12 to AY. 2017-18, the
Complainant submitted that it is a matter of further investigation by an independent
Investigating Agency, as to how the Respondent obtained copies of these
Assessment Orders passed in the case of the Trust and how the said Assessment
Orders are in possession of the Respondent, without any authority in law or without
the consent and knowledge of the Trustees of the Trust. The Complainant further
confirmed that none of the Trustees have ever given the Respondent copies of the
said Assessment Orders, neither has the Respondent requested the Trustees of the
Trust and/or the Complainant to give him copies of the same.

m. During the course of action on 29/11/2016, taken u/s 132 of the Income Tax Act,
1961, at the business and residential premise of the Respondent, the statement of
the Respondent was recorded on oath u/s 132 (4) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
together with the statement of the peon of the Respondent Mr. Vijay Solanki. The
said statements were placed before the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat alongwith the
Affidavit filed by Shri. Rajneesh Yadav, Deputy Commissioner of income Tax, Central
Circle in the Affidavit in Reply filed by the said Officer in Special Civil Application No.
21233 of 2017, which petition was filed by the Respondent challenging the Notice
under Section 148 of the Income Tax Act 1961 dated 30.03.2017, seeking to reopen
the Income Tax Assessment of the Resi{bondent for the A.Y. 2010-11. The case of the
Respondent was approved for reopening by the Jurisdictional Principal
Commissioner of Income-tax, Central Charge, Ahmedabad, and such approval was
granted on the basis of the reasons recorded by Shri Rajnish Yadav, the then AO,
after considering all the relevant materials found and seized during the course of
search action u/s 132 of the IT Act 1961, on the Respondent. The said Affidavit filed
by Shri Rajneesh Yadav, Joint Commissioner of Income Tax (OSD), Central Circle ||
(1), Ahmedabad, reveal how the Respondent has illegally and without any authority in
law operated the bank account of the Trust and has admitted the said aspects in the
statement recorded by the Income Tax Authorities.

n. The Income Tax Department also found that substantial amount of cash has been
withdrawn from the bank account of the Trust by the Respondent's peon Mr. Vijay
Solanki, and that the cash amount of almost Rs. 47,40,000 was handed over to the
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Respondent. The aforesaid search proceedings taken by the Income T gy
Department under Section 132 of the IT Act 1961 and the statements recorded unger
sections 132(4) of the IT Act 1961 of the Respondent and his peon Mr. Vijay Solanki
by the Income Tax Authorities, that the Respondent has received cash through his
peon, which was withdrawn from the bank account maintained with South Indian
Bank, and which Bank Account was controlled by the Respondent and the money
withdrawn in cash was utilised by the Respondent, which the Respondent has
admitted in his statement recorded by the Income Tax Authorities and the same was
not reflected in the books of accounts of the Respondent.

. The Respondent sought permission to withdraw Special Civil Application No. 21233
of 2017, after the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat heard the Learned Counsel for the
Income Tax Department and after taking into consideration the Affidavit filed by the
Joint Commissioner of Income Tax.

. The Respondent has consciously produced only 12 pages of his Assessment Order
for the AY 2011-12 and from the same it appears that the remaining 61 pages have
not been produced though specifically directed by the Board of Discipline. The
Complainant submitted that the above non production of the said 61 pages by the
Respondent would tantamount to suppression of material facts and concealment of
relevant material and facts. The relevant discussion at last paragraph of Page 40
deals with the analysis of the bank accounts by the Assessing Officer and the same
clearly bring out the facts and the manner in which the Respondent has
misconducted himself. Further, the Assessing Officer has made the addition of
amount of Rs. 49,54,158/- to the total income of the Respondent under Section 69A
of the Act in the hand of the Respondent and the said amount of Rs. 49,54,158/- has
been treated as unexplained money and has been added in the computation of
income chart and the penalty proceedings against the Respondent under Section
271(1)(c)of the IT Act 1961 for concealment of incomes initiated separately against
the Respondent. This amount of Rs. 49,54,158/- is the amount of cash which has
been withdrawn by the Respondent from the Bank Account of the Trust as
conclusively proved by the Assessing Officer considering the material evidences
available on record and gathered during the search conducted on 29.11.2016,
wherein the Respondent and his employee Mr. Vijay Solanki have admitted to the
said cash withdrawal from the bank account of the Trust.

. Ms. Devina Panchal is in no manner even remotely related to the Complainant or any
of his family members or his relatives. During the course of Police investigation, it
has come to light that she was one of the employees working in the office of the
Respondent. q/
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Observations and Findings of the Board:

7. On perusal of documents on record, the Board observed the following sequence of events
which is relevant to understand the role of the Respondent in the matter:-

a.

In the year 2000, Mr. Pannalal Modi alongwith his two daughters Mr. Parul Modi and
Mrs. Shivangi Panchal (Wife of Complainant) formed a charitable trust “The Environment
Research & Development Centre, Ahmedabad (Trust)” and also got a land on lease of
15 years from the Government for environment purpose and the Respondent was
instrumental in the establishment of the said Trust and also assisted the trustees.

Mr. Pannalal Modi expired in the year 2006 leaving his two daughters as trustees of the
Trust.

On 22/11/2008, account of the Trust bearing number 0179053000010596 was opened
with South Indian Bank, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat Branch.

On 11/09/2007, account of the Complainant was also opened with South Indian Bank,
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat Branch wherein mobile number of the Respondent
was mentioned in the Account Opening Form.

The Respondent also acted as Auditor of the said Trust from the initiation of the Trust till
31/03/2013 as per Audit Reports of the said Trust.

The Respondent in his audit reports of the Trust issued for the year ended 31/03/2002 to

31/03/2005 mentioned in the Remarks Column on First Page of respective Audit Reports
as under:

“The Trust has not started any activities till date”.

The Respondent vide letter dated 15/09/2009 addressed to The Income Tax Officer (HQ)
(Exem.), Ahmedabad requested to change the address of the Trust to his own address.
Through the execution of Memorandum “of Understanding (MoU) dated 26/10/2013
between the Respondent and Mrs. Shivangi Amit Panchal (Wife of Complainant), the
Respondent along with his son Mr. Huzan Sethna became the Trustees of the said Trust.

The search proceedings were initiated at the office of the Respondent on 29/11/2016 by
the Income Tax Department.

The Respondent gave an affidavit dated 24/12/2016 wherein he confirmed and admitted
his role in the matter and conduct of affairs of the Trust. The Respondent categorically
exonerated the trustees and admitted the fact that he has signed all the cheques.

o

/
W
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<. On 30" March 2017, the DCIT Central Circle 2(1), Ahmedabad recorded the following

reasons for initiation of proceedings under Section 147 of the Income Tax Act, 19g1
against the Respondent for the A.Y. 2010-11:
“Saving account maintained by the above mentioned trust was being controlled by njr
Tehmul Sethna and therefore, the money withdrawn in cash by Mr. Vijay Solanki has
been utilized by the Assessee. The Assessee has also admitted that such cash
withdrawal is not reflected in his books of accounts.”

I. On 07/12/2017, Mrs. Shivangi Panchal (wife of the Complainant) on behalf of the Tryst
lodged an FIR- CR No. 187/2017, PS: Navrangpura, Ahmedabad against the
Respondent for the offences punishable of criminal breach of trust, cheating, forgery and
fraud punishable under Indian Penal Code, 1860.

m. The Affidavit dated 29/01/2018 of Sh. Rajneesh Yadav, JCIT (OSD), Central Circle-2(1),
Ahmedabad filed in Special Civil Application No. 21233 of 2017 before the Hon’ble High
Court of Gujarat at Ahmedabad in the matter of “Tehmul Barjor Sethna Vs. The Joint
Commissioner of Income Tax, Ahmedabad” wherein the Deponent in para 8 to 14
explicitly stated that Mr. Vijay Solanki (peon of Respondent) has withdrawn huge amount
from the bank account of the Trust maintained with South Indian Bank and has handed
over the said amount to the Respondent and the statement of said Mr. Vijay Solanki was
also recorded under Section 131 of the Income Tax Act in this behalf.

8. The Board while considering the oral and written submissions forwarded by the parties in
the extant matter noted as under:

a. The Board on perusal of Account Opening Form of Sh. Amit Panchal (Complainant
herein) dated 11/09/2007 with respect to the bank account maintained with South Indian
Bank submitted by the Complainant alongwith his complaint observed that the said
account was introduced by the Respondent and the mobile number mentioned in the
customer profile of the Complainant was the mobile number of the Respondent which
was also registered with the Institute for communication with the Respondent.

b. The charge sheet filed against the Respondent in the matter FIR no. I-C.R. No. 187/2017
dated 07/12/2017 PS: Navrangpura was also placed on record by the Complainant
wherein the Respondent was charged with an offence of breach of trust, cheating,
forgery, etc. with the Complainant, his wife and sister in law.

c. The Board further noted that the Respondent has referred to Forensic Examination
Report issued by Directorate of Forensic Science, Gandhinagar in AB Case No.
568/2018 (i.e. PS: Navrangapura, I.C.R. 187/2017) dated 18/04/2019 for disputed
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sighatures and sample signatures of Respondent, where the Forensic Expert has Opined
as under:-

“4. No definite opinion could be expressed on the red enclosed disputeq
signatures marked D1 to D97 in comparison with the blue enclosed standarq

writings and signatures marked S181 to S360, S361 to S612, S721 to S756
and N2."

The Board in this regard observed that the said forensic report relied by the Respondent
is subject to examination of concerned expert before the Court of Competent Jurisdiction

and as such no benefit can be extended to the Respondent at this stage and the said
plea seems a weak piece of evidence.

. The Board observed that the amount of cash which has been withdrawn by the
Respondent from the Bank Account of the trust as conclusively proved by the Assessing
Officer considering the material evidence available on record and gathered during the
search conducted on 29/11/2016 wherein the Respondent and Mr. Vijay Solanki (peon of
the Respondent) had admitted to the said cash withdrawals from the bank account of the
Trust and established the modus operandi as alleged by the Complainant. It further
surfaced that Respondent has used various bank accounts of other parties including
Trust and the Complainant and was beneficiary of such fraudulent transactions. Several
documents for misappropriation of funds were noticed during course of search.

. The Board further sought the clarification during the proceedings from the Respondent
that whether he had challenged the proceedings under Section 148 of the Income Tax
Act and in response thereto the Respondent submitted that he filed the writ petition
before the Hon'ble High Court, wherein thé%’;it was stated that Respondent cannot reopen
it due to Authorisation issue. The Respondent further submitted that he has filed Section
142(2A) before in the Hon'ble High Court, which was initiated by the Income Tax Deputy
Commissioner. In this regard, the Board noted the Sh. Rajneesh Yadav's, JCIT had filed
an Affidavit before the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat at Ahmedabad in the matter
Special Civil Application No. 21233 of 2017 “Tehmul Barjor Sethna Vs. Deputy
Commissioner of Income Tax Central Circle 2(1)" wherein he stated undisputed facts
related to the Respondent and the Modus Operandi of the Respondent. The Respondent
challenged the reopening of assessment in his case. However, he subsequently sought
permission to withdraw the petition. The Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat at Ahmedabad
vide its Order dated 21/02/2018 observed that after fill arguments, the Counsel of the

Respondent has himself withdrawn the said petition in order to avoid reasoned Order
from the Court. _/
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f. The Board while considering the Special Audit Reports dated 02/08/2019 as referred by
Respondent during his oral submissions before it, the Board observed that there \wag
various limitations/ reservations as mentioned in Special Report under Form No. @B
(Section 142(2A) of Income Tax Act, 1961) wherein it was categorically mentioned that
the Auditor has not been provided with books of accounts, balance sheet, P&L accouynt
of the Respondent. Moreover, no information/ explanation required for the above sajd

report was also not been provided to the Special Auditor which itself negates the plea
taken by the Respondent.

g. On perusal of various documents provided by both the parties, the Board believes that
the modus operandi and motive behind the bank accounts very clearly depicted the clear
role of the Respondent wherein while looking at Assessment Orders for the AY 2011-12,
2012-13 and 2013-14 passed by Deputy Commission of Income Tax against the
Respondent found that the Environmental Research Development Trust had received
donations through cheque and took back a certain portion of such donation in cash.
Wherein undue benefits like donation under Section 80G and an unexplained income

related to Trust was added back by him. The relevant portion of said assessment orders
all dated 31/12/2019 is reproduced hereunder:-

For AY 2011-12

“9.....Hence, in view of the above and discussion made in the show-cause, amount of
Rs. 49,54,158/- is treated as unexplained money u/s 69A of the Act in the name of
the assesse (Respondent herein) and added back to income of AY. 2011-12.

Penalty proceedings u/s. 271(1)(c) of the L.T. Act for concealment of income is
initiated separately.”

For AY 2012-13

“8.2 Hence, in view of the above and discussion made in the show-cause , amount of
Rs. 5,45,000/- is treated as unexplained money u/s 69A of the Act in the name of the
assesse (Respondent herein) and added back to income of A.Y. 2012-13. Penalty

proceedings u/s. 271(1)(c) of the I.T. Act for concealment of income is initiated
separately.”

“9.1 Hence, in view of the above and non-compliance on this issue, amount of Rs.
50,000/~ claimed as deduction u/s 80G of the Act is disallowed and added back to
income of A.Y. 2012-13. Penalty proceedings u/s. 271(1)(c) of the I.T. Act for
furnishing inaccurate particulars of income is initiated separately.”

For AY 2013-14

“7.4 Hence, in view of the above and discussion made in the show-cause , amount of
Rs 42, 50 000/- is treated as unexplained money u/s 69A of the Act in the name of

(Respondent herein) and added back to income of AY. 2013-14.
d MMT{?)(C} of the I.T. Act for concealment of income is
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“8.1 Hence, in view of the above and non-compliance on this issue, amount of Rs.
50,000/~ claimed as deduction u/s 80G of the Act is disallowed and added back to

income of A.Y. 2013-14. Penalty proceedings u/s. 271(1)(c) of the LT. Act for
furnishing inaccurate particulars of income is initiated separately.”

93 Hence, in view of the above and discussion made in the show-cause , amount of
Rs. 23,82,000/- is treated as unaccounted and unaccounted expenditure u/s 69¢C of
the Act in the name of the assesse (Respondent herein) and added back to income

of A.Y. 2013-14. Penalty proceedings u/s. 271(1)(c) of the I.T. Act for concealment of
income is initiated separately.”

9. Considering the above facts and documents on record, it is observed that the Respondent
has abused his professional relationship for personal gains from the initial period of creation
of Trust itself and for the said wrongful benefits he created various documents, opened bank
accounts, forged signature of trustees, misused the documents entrusted with him during his
professional engagement with the Trust and has illegally withdrawn the amount from the
bank account of the Trust through his peon Mr. Vijay Solanki and the said conduct of
Respondent is clearly unbecoming of member of the Institute. Through the said conduct, the

Respondent has also brought disrepute to the profession and thus, Respondent is held liable
within the meaning of ltem (2) of Part IV of First Schedule.

10. Keeping in view the circumstances and documents vis-a-vis role of the Respondent in
opening and operations of bank accounts and modus-operandi related to above mentioned
Trust, the misconduct of the Respondent is duly established in the charges alleged by the
Complainant duly substantiated by the various Assessment Orders, Charge Sheet filed
against him and Court Orders available on record. The above said act of the Respondent
makes him liable for bringing disrepute to the profession while doing such an illegal act.

CONCLUSION:

11. Thus, in conclusion, in the considered opinion of the Board, the Respondent is GUILTY
of Other Misconduct falling within the meaning of Item (2) of Part IV of the First Schedule to
the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 read with Section 22 of the said Act.

Sd/-
CA. PRASANNA KUMAR D.
(PRESIDING OFFICER)
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